
Jenny Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Fax : Bideford (01237) 479164

Date: 27 July 2018

TO:  THE CHAIR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE TORRIDGE DISTRICT 
COUNCIL

FULL COUNCIL MEETING

TOWN HALL - BRIDGE STREET, BIDEFORD, EX39 2HS 

Monday 6 August 2018 at 6.30 pm

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the
aforementioned date and time

Head of Paid Service

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the 
meeting.

P R A Y E R S 
For those who wish to participate - Prayers will be held at 6.25 pm.

A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting

2.  COUNCIL MINUTES (Pages 4 - 12)
Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 18 June 2018.

3.  PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 
15 minute period for public contributions



- 2 -

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being discussed.

5.  AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

6.  TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

7.  TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

8.  CONSTITUTION UPDATE 2018 (Pages 13 - 51)
To receive the report of the Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer

9.  ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2017-18 (Pages 52 - 57)
To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources)

10.  MEMBERSHIP OF THE PROGRAMME BOARD (Pages 58 - 60)
To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources)

11.  APPOINTMENT OF A NON-ELECTED REPRESENTATIVE AND INDEPENDENT 
PERSONS (Pages 61 - 62)
To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources)

12.  TRANSFORMING TORRIDGE PROGRAMME - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 63 - 
65)
To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources)

13.  PETITIONS 
To receive petitions (if any)

14.  NOTICES OF MOTION 

15.  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
The Chair to move:

“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972”

16.  PART II - (CLOSED SESSION) 

Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed.



- 3 -

17.  STRATEGIC BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PLANNING WORKSHOP - OUTCOMES 
(Pages 66 - 70)
To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources)

18.  DELEGATION OF STATUTORY OFFICER ROLES 
To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service  -  Report to follow

Meeting Organiser:  Democratic Services Tel. 01237 428703



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Monday, 18 June 2018 - 6.30 pm

PRESENT: Councillor S Inch (Chair)
Councillor D McGeough (Vice-Chair)

Councillors B Boundy, D Brenton, P Christie, C Cottle-Hunkin, 
A Dart, K Davis, G Dezart, A Eastman, Z Gregorek, J Hellyer, 
R Hicks, J Himan, D Hurley, T Inch, K James, T Johns, R Julian, 
M Langmead, N Laws, R Lock, J Morrish, P Pennington, 
C Simmons, P Watson and J Whittaker

ALSO PRESENT: J Wallace, Head of Paid Service
S Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources)
J Hollis, Senior Solicitor
S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer
M Richards, Democratic Services Officer

Members of the public - 122 (approx.)

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Boyle, Brown, Carroll, 
Hackett, Hancock, Langton-Lockton, Parker and Wiseman.  

2.   COUNCIL MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor A Inch, seconded by Councillor Langmead and -

Resolved:   That the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 14 May 2018 
be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to the following 
amendment:

Minute 14 b) - Councillor Christie asked that his comments about Councillor Hellyer 
being elected as Vice Chair of Audit & Governance be included in the minutes.  He 
felt Councillor Hellyer, as a newly elected Councillor, was insufficiently experienced 
for the role.

(Vote:  For 26, Abstentions 1) 

Matters Arising

Minute 16 – Substitution Scheme

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2

Councillor Christie felt the Scheme should be revisited following a recent Plans 
Committee meeting where no substitute had been arranged by the absent Member 
possibly affecting the outcome.   It was suggested that it was for Group Leaders, 
not Members, to appoint substitutes.  The Senior Solicitor confirmed responsibility 
for finding a substitute lay primarily with the Member and secondly the Group 
Leader.   A report, updating the Constitution and including the Substitution Scheme, 
will be presented at the next Full Council.

3.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

Mr Keith Goodred addressed the Council on the subject of the reversal of the 
decision in respect of the planning application for 58 holiday homes at the Knapp 
House Caravan Park.  He raised questions about material considerations and the 
circumstances surrounding the application meetings.  A written response was 
requested.

Mr Mike Ford presented a petition signed by residents who live within a 1.5 mile 
radius of the Cattle Market site and by parents of children at St Mary’s School.  He 
referred to the recent visit of gypsies and travellers to the Cattle Market site, when 
residents had been subjected to verbal threats and racial slurs, adding that the 
matter was now in the hands of the police.  Mr Ford implored the Council to do 
something with the site to make it safe and secure and to prevent gypsies and 
travellers from entering.  He concluded that residents felt the needs of the gypsies 
and travellers took precedence over the needs of the community.  A written 
response was requested.

Councillor Hugh Brading of Northam Town Council, Mr Phillip Hodson and Mr Peter 
Jeffery all spoke on the subject of Westward Ho! Park, raising the following points:

 The public survey had returned a 12.5% response.
 95% of those who had responded were in favour of Northam Town Council 

taking over the Park.
 The existing tennis courts can be used gratis but there would be a charge for 

the new courts

A petition was presented on behalf of 4,000 residents and it was requested that the 
decision process be reviewed by Full Council.

The Senior Solicitor explained that once the number of signatures had been 
verified, the matter would be scheduled for discussion at Full Council if above 5% of 
the population.  There was no allowance for the petition to be debated during this 
meeting of the Council.  

Councillor Christie raised a point of order, suggesting that, as Councillor Laws was 
putting forward a notice of motion, the subject could be discussed.  The Senior 
Solicitor confirmed that standing orders could be suspended, if proposed and 
seconded.  However, Members would be ill advised to debate a matter raised 
during public speaking or on a written motion without having all of the information to 
hand.  Councillor Morrish stated that the matter had already been discussed at 

Page 5



3

Community & Resources and the information had ipso facto been presented.  The 
Chair guided Members back to agenda.

Mr Dave Gibbons also spoke on the Cattle Market site, echoing many of the 
concerns raised by Mr Ford in relation to the gypsies and travellers.  He praised his 
local community but felt their voice was not being heard. 

The final speaker was Mr Daniel Bell who aired his views on sustainability of 
development, referring to various sites in the District.  He commented that no 
Councillors appeared to be interested the issues he had raised. Councillor Cottle-
Hunkin asked Mr Bell to detail the issues in an e-mail.

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

5.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

The Head of Paid Service explained that, although not on the Agenda, there were 
two confidential issues on which Members needed to be updated.  These matters, 
one contractual and one legal, had come about following publication of the Agenda.

It was proposed by Councillor Whittaker, seconded by Councillor A Inch and –

Resolved:

That the Agenda as circulated be agreed, subject to the change as stated above.

(Vote:  For 23, Abstentions 3)  -  one Member had left the meeting

6.   TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

The Chair reminded Members of the following:

 The Memorial Service for Sam Robinson to be held on Wednesday 20 June 
at 2pm.

 Armed Forces – Flag Raising Event to be held on Monday 25 June at 
6.30pm.  

7.   TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

The Senior Solicitor explained the procedure involved for when questions are 
submitted under Procedural Rule A9.

Questions had been submitted by Councillor Christie and Councillor Brenton under 
Procedural Rule A9.

Page 6



4

In accordance with the Constitution, written answers to the questions had been 
circulated to all Members.

Question from Councillor Christie

Councillor Christie:

I understand the new Bideford Skate Park has a funding shortfall which will mean it 
has to be built in two phases.    The second section will not be constructed until 
S106 money is available but given the time delay associated with this source, can I 
ask why TDC cannot draw the necessary sum from its reserves and ‘repay’ this 
money from future S106 income – as was recently done with the resurfacing of Mill 
and Allhalland Streets in Bideford?

Answer

The S106 funds earmarked for the skate park have not as yet been formally agreed 
with the developer, and once agreed, may not become payable for a number of 
years.   If the development does not materialise or the terms of the S106 are 
subsequently amended, the funds may not be payable at all.

With regard to Mill Street resurfacing, we offered to assign the S106 contribution 
direct to the County Council.   DCC did not accept this and so the contribution was 
just funded by TDC and not ‘borrowed’ against future S106 contributions.

All S106 contributions are designed to mitigate the effect of the development.   If 
works are carried out before the development is commenced, the developer can 
argue that the S106 contribution is not valid if the works are required before any 
impact from the development occur.

If the Council wish to accelerate Phase 2, then it would be necessary to submit a 
bid for capital funding.

The tenders for Phase 1 have been received and evaluated and a contractor has 
been chosen.

Supplementary Question

Councillor Christie suggested that a bid for capital funding be submitted to enable 
the skateboard park to be completed in one Phase.

The Head of Paid Service gave the following update:

 Tenders had gone out and a bid had been accepted for Phase 1 of the work.   
 All Members were to be invited to an event at Caddsdown next month where 

Members would be asked to look at priorities going forward.  She 
emphasised the importance of Members attending the event.

Councillor Pennington stated he had included the funding issues with regard to the 
skateboard park in his Lead Member update, to be discussed at Leadership Team 
meeting next week.

Page 7



5

Following comments made by Councillor Morrish, Councillor Whittaker explained 
that it had always been the Council’s intention to build the skateboard park in two 
phases, and the reason for the urgency in making a decision was to secure 
external funding to deliver Phase 1.

Question from Councillor Brenton

Why the buildings at the Old Cattle Market Bideford are not demolished bearing in 
mind that the roofs are asbestos and broken, and that the site is not secure enough 
to stop people gaining access?

ANSWER

The old Cattle Market buildings have not been demolished as yet as they were 
situated on a parcel of land where the proposal is for a much larger leisure and 
recreational development opportunity.  

This development is intended to incorporate not only this area, but with links to 
what can be achieved for the surrounding area including Victoria Park.

The timetable for this project is “medium term”, although cannot be precisely 
determined  as is reliant on funding to be realised through s106 contributions on 
developments forecast to be delivered over a number of years in the future.  Any 
future development brief will include the demolition of the buildings and therefore 
funded through these contributions.

In terms of the current arrangements for managing the health, safety and security 
aspects of the buildings and site, the area is fenced off and secured.  There is 
adequate and appropriate signage in place to warn of the dangers of entering the 
area.  We also have CCTV in operation, which covers the main approaches to the 
buildings.

Unfortunately and for whatever reason some choose to ignore these warnings and 
the fact that the site is secured and break in.  The site is regularly inspected by the 
team to measure any deterioration in the condition of the buildings and if at such 
time the safety risk is such that they become necessary for demolition before the 
progress of the project then this will be reported to Members for consideration and 
there is £78k set aside in the Capital Programme should this become necessary.

Councillor Brenton presented his question, following which he asked that standing 
orders be suspended for debate and a decision to be made at this meeting.

The Senior Solicitor strongly advised that, although it would be possible to discuss 
the issue if standing orders were suspended on a matter not on the agenda and it 
would not be appropriate for any decision to be made without Members being 
apprised fully of the facts

Despite the advice given by the Senior Solicitor, Members were of the opinion that 
the matter should be resolved at this meeting.

Page 8



6

Councillor Whittaker suggested that a full report be presented at the next 
Community & Resources Committee meeting where an informed decision could be 
made.  However, it became evident that Members did not agree with this.  

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton and seconded by Councillor A Inch -

That standing orders be suspended to allow this matter to be debated and a 
decision to be made. 

(Vote: For 23, Against 2, Abstentions 1)

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor A Inch that - 

The old Cattle Market buildings be demolished and that the site be made secure.

Further discussions took place and the following items were raised:

 That rock armour be erected to secure the site, as the current provision 
including Heras fencing was inadequate.

 There was a need for a Gypsy & Traveller transit site and a permanent site.  
It was noted that sites were being put forward for consideration as temporary 
sites and site visits had taken place.

 The Rugby Club had expressed an interested in using the site but this had to 
be in conjunction with St Mary’s School.

 Consideration on how to make the site inaccessible to the gypsies & 
travellers needed to be looked at in more detail and should go back to 
Community and Resources.

 Members needed to be absolutely clear what they wished to do with the site 
once the buildings had been demolished.

 A suggestion was that the site should be set aside for car parking.

The Senior Solicitor reiterated that a decision taken by Full Council on an item not 
on the agenda, without all the relevant facts and implications and contrary to the 
procedural rules adopted by this Council, undermines the decision and leaves it 
vulnerable to challenge.

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor A Inch and – 

Resolved:

That the old Cattle Market buildings be demolished.

(Vote for 25, Abstentions 1)

8.   PETITIONS 

Two petitions had been received earlier in the meeting in relation to:

 The gypsies & travellers
 Westward Ho! park

Page 9



7

9.   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 

It was proposed by Councillor Julian, seconded by Councillor Davis that Councillor 
Dart be elected as Vice Chair of Community & Resources Committee

It was proposed by Councillor A Inch, seconded by Councillor Morrish that 
Councillor Himan be elected as Vice Chair of Community & Resources Committee

Councillor Dart -18 Votes
Councillor Himan - 8 Votes
            
Resolved:

That Councillor Dart be elected as Vice Chair of Community & Resources.

10.   ELECTION OF LEAD MEMBER 

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Davis that 
Councillor Hicks be elected Lead Member for the Economy

(Vote: For 21 , Against 1, Abstentions 4)

Resolved:

That Councillor Hicks be elected as Lead Member for the Economy.

11.   ANNUAL REPORT - STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

The Senior Solicitor presented the annual report of the Standards Committee.  

In response to a question the Senior Solicitor provided clarification as to the role of 
the independent Person. 

Councillor Pennington referred to the Standards Committee meeting held on 16 
August where restricting Part II items to attendees only had been discussed.  The 
Senior Solicitor had advised during that meeting on how the Access to Information 
Procedure operated and he affirmed that the position had not changed.

The annual report was noted and thanks were extended to Councillor Carroll for 
chairing the Committee during 2017/18.

12.   NOTICES OF MOTION 

Written Notice of Motion from Councillor N Laws

“That Torridge District Council, using the Community Transfer Procedure, hand 
Westward Ho! Park, Pavilion and Tennis Courts in their entirety back into the 
ownership of Northam Town Council at a cost of one pound”.

Page 10



8

When presenting his Motion, Councillor Laws acknowledged it would be 
appropriate for the matter to be referred to C&R for further consideration.

The Senior Solicitor advised Members that in accordance with the Constitution, 
once the motion had been moved and seconded, a vote should be taken (with no 
further discussion taking place at this meeting) on whether the motion should be 
referred to the appropriate committee. 

The Notice of Motion was seconded by Councillor Christie.

It was proposed by Councillor Laws and seconded by Councillor Christie that, 
under Part 4, Chapter 1, A18 of the constitution, standing orders be suspended.  

The Chair referred to the advice given by the Senior Solicitor that it would be 
inappropriate to debate the issue before the relevant Committee had the 
opportunity to consider it further.

No vote was taken to suspend standing orders.

A vote was then taken on the proposal by Councillor Laws, seconded by Councillor 
Christie, that the Notice of Motion be referred to Community & Resources 
Committee for further consideration

(Vote: For 16, Against 9, Abstention 1)

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that:

 The Notice of Motion would be considered by Community & Resources
 The petition, once verified, would be brought back to a future Full Council 

meeting.

13.   TRANSFORMING TORRIDGE PROGRAMME (STANDING ITEM) 

The Head of Paid Service reported that the works were continuing.   Minutes of the 
Programme Board meeting would be circulated.

Councillor Boundy left the meeting.

14.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

It was proposed, seconded and –

Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the 
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

Page 11



9

The Chair, Councillor S Inch, reminded Members  that Part II information is 
confidential and must not be disclosed to a third party.   

15.   PART II - (CLOSED SESSION) 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) updated Members on the marketing of Bridge 
Buildings.  

Councillor Morrish left the room. 

The Head of Paid Service apprised Members of the latest developments with 
regard to a legal issue.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.31 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 12



REPORT OF Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer
To: Council 
Subject: Constitution update 2018 
Date: 6 August 2018 Reference: JDH

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To seek full Council approval for updates to the Constitution. 
 

1. INTRODUCTION

It is proposed that the Council’s Constitution should be updated to take account of various 
changes and proposed amendments identified since it was last issued. The Monitoring 
Officer role includes monitoring the Constitution and making recommendations for ways it 
could be improved to better achieve the purposes the Constitution is intended to achieve. 
These recommendations may arise from observations during Committee meetings, 
discussions with officers and Members, comparison with other local authorities and 
recognised best practice.

2. REPORT

This report proposes some more significant changes as well as general updates to the 
Council’s Constitution. The more significant changes are outlined below, and all changes are 
summarised on the list at Appendix A. The changes have been considered by a 
Constitution Working Group comprising the political party group leaders and have been 
agreed for submission to full Council. 

In the interests of efficiency, only the sections of the Constitution that have subject to 
proposed amendments have been reproduced in Appendix B to this report. All proposed 
changes have been identified with track changes. 

The more significant referred to above can be summarised as follows:

a) Members Code of Conduct to include a requirement that newly elected Members 
undergo a DBS (Disclosure and Barring Service) check: Undergoing a DBS check will 
enable the Council to receive a report showing the subject Member’s criminal record, as 
is currently standard practice for many officers of the Council. The report would be used 
to identify any convictions that represent a risk in terms of the subject Member and their 
contact with members of the public, for example children or vulnerable people. If a risk is 
identified, then measures may be put in place to reduce the risk to an acceptable level.  

Under the provisions of the Local Government Act, a Member is prevented from taking 
office if he or she has been convicted of an offence resulting in a sentence of 
imprisonment for a period of not less than 3 months, within 5 years before election or 
anytime thereafter. A Member can also be prevented from taking up office if disqualified 
for corrupt electoral practices. This however is a separate procedure than that proposed, 
and it is not a legal requirement for an elected Member to undergo a DBS check, and an 
elected Member cannot be prevented from taking up office either by refusing to undergo 
a DBS check or refusing to comply with any risk mitigation measures. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



By including a requirement for DBS checks in the Members Code of Conduct, it shows 
the Council is actively taking steps to address any possible impact on the public arising 
from the previous conduct of an elected Member. If the requirement was included in the 
Code of Conduct, a refusal by a Member to undergo a DBS check would result in a 
possible referral to the Standards Committee. 

If full Council is minded to agree the imposition of DBS checks, it is suggested that the 
Standards Committee is requested to consider a detailed procedure setting out how in 
practical terms how the DBS check process would be dealt with, including how any 
convictions revealed would be addressed. 

b) Every decision on a planning application by the Plans Committee is subject to a recorded 
vote: The Constitution currently provides that a recorded vote can be taken at any 
committee on any decision if 5 members of that Committee request it. It has been 
proposed that this provision is extended so that every planning application considered by 
the Plans Committee would automatically be subject to a recorded vote. 

The objective is to increase transparency, particularly for those interested parties not at a 
meeting to witness the voting, without introducing any new voting method to confuse 
matters. The change would result in a slight delay when the decision is taken, although 
this would be minimal as the Committee is only comprised of 9 members. 

The remaining amendments are relatively minor in nature, and are highlighted in Appendix 
B for Members’ consideration. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Non-administrative changes to the Constitution need to be approved by full Council.

Financial Implications
There are none identified

Human Resources Implications
There are none identified

Sustainability Implications
There are none identified

Equality/Diversity
The Constitution should incorporate relevant legal and good practice requirements.

Risk Management
There are none identified

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
There are none identified

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
The proposed amendments have been considered by the Constitution Working Group 
comprising the group leaders.

Page 14



4. CONCLUSIONS

This report is intended to summarise a series of amendments necessary to ensure the 
Constitution is kept up to date. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

As this report proposes some more significant changes as well as general updates, the 
recommendations have been drafted to easily allow a separate vote on each issue, should 
Members so wish. 

1. It is recommended that full Council decide whether or not to adopt the following changes, 
which will then be incorporated into the Constitution: 

a) Amend the Members Code of Conduct to include a requirement that newly elected 
Members undergo a DBS check;

b) Amend the Voting Scheme to require every decision on a planning application by the 
Plans Committee is subject to a recorded vote;

2. It is further recommended that full Council adopt the changes illustrated by the draft 
documents at Appendix B, which will then be incorporated into the Constitution

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: The proposed amendments have been considered by the 
Constitution Working Group comprising the group leaders.
Head of Paid Service, S151 Officer. 

Contact Officer: Jamie Hollis 

Background Papers: The Council’s Constitution 

Page 15



Constitution amendments August 2018

Section Subject Date / Version Proposed Changes
Code of Conduct for Members V2.0 Feb 2015 Amend to include agreement that all Members undergo a DBS check when 

elected

All Constitution arrangement Add contents page and page numbering 

Part 3, Chp 1 Plans Committee Terms of Reference 
(Paragraph 2 (Decision making) 
pertaining to implications reports)

V1.1 Aug 2016 Amend so that rule only applies to major applications or strategic sites

Part 3, Chp 1 Delegation to Committees V1.1 Aug 2016 Add new Terms of Reference for Programme Board meetings

Part 3, Chp 1 Local Development Framework Group 
Terms of Reference

V1.1 Aug 2016 Delete as now defunct 

Part 3, Chp 2 Officer Delegations V3.0 May 2018 Consolidate all HoPS delegations into one section

Part 4, Chp 1, Rule A4.5 Rules of Procedure - Substitution 
Scheme

V1.0 Aug 2016 Rewrite to clarify process surrounding appointment of substitutes (absent 
member, then group leader) and remove necessity for annual approval of 
scheme 

Part 4, Chp 1, Rule A9 Written questions by Members V1.0 Aug 2016 Add paragraph A9.7 to clarify that no decision may be taken on a matter 
arising from a written question at that meeting

Part 4, Chp 1, Rule A11
Part 8, Chp 1

Petition Scheme V1.0 Aug 2016 Rewrite / delete

Part 2, Article 15 
Part 4, Chp 1, Rule A18

Suspension of Council rules V1.0 Aug 2016 Clarify 

Part 4, Chp 4 O&S Procedure Rules – Call in of C&R 
decision paragraph c)

Paragraph d)

V1.0 Aug 2016 ‘Any 4 members of the Council’ to exclude members of C&R who made the 
decision being called in;

‘Committee reconsider the matter within a further 5 working days’ to be 
extended as not possible with meeting notice requirements 

P
age 16



Part 5, Chp 4 (full Council) 
Part 5, Chp 5 (Plans Ctte)
Planning Ctte Protocol  (Plans)
Agenda items (O&S)

Public Speaking Scheme
V2.0 Aug 2016

Consolidate into one scheme 

Part 6 Operational Management Team 
Structure Chart

Move to Scheme of Delegations and update

Part 8, Chp 2
Part 2 Article 12

Voting Scheme V2.0 Aug 2016 Amend to require every decision on a planning application by Plans 
Committee to be subject to a recorded vote. 

P
age 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



REPORT OF Strategic Manager – Resources

To: Full Council

Subject: Annual Report on Treasury Management 2017-18

Date: 6th August 2018

1. INTRODUCTION
The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management in the 
Public Sector, which requires that a report should be presented on Treasury 
Management activity for the previous financial year.  This report also includes the 
actual Prudential Indicators for the year.

2. REPORT

Background
The Council operates its treasury management service in compliance with the code 
and other statutory requirements. These require that the prime objective of the treasury 
management activity is the effective management of risk, and that borrowing activity is 
undertaken on a prudent, affordable and sustainable basis.

Performance for the year 2017/18
The Bank of England Base Rate increased to 0.50% on the 1st November 2017. 

The average rate of return achieved by the Council on its short term investments was 
0.55% which compared with 0.70% in 2016/17.

The return from short term investments in 2017/18 was £78k, which compared with a 
return of £97k in 2016/17.

As at the 31st March 2018 the Council had short term investments of £12m lodged with 
financial institutions, the comparable figure for the 31st March 2017 being £13m.

During 2017/18 the Council repaid £96k of long term Public Loans Board debt, the 
balance outstanding at the close of 2017/18 being £1,142k.

The Council’s internal prudential borrowing was reduced by £0.6m following the receipt 
of a deferred capital receipt pertaining to sale of an asset in a prior year.

The Prudential indicators for the year are attached at Appendix 1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To report on the treasury management activity in the year and actual prudential indicators for 
2017/18.

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



3. Implications

Legal Implications

There are no specific legal implications

Financial Implications

All treasury management activity carries a level of risk, but adherence to the approved 
strategy minimises this. However, minimising risk needs to be balanced with the 
income generated and the expenditure incurred through treasury management 
activities. 

 The Council’s treasury strategy can be best summarised in order of priority as 

 Security of investment
 Liquidity
 Return on investment.

The Council employs Link Asset Services as its external Treasury advisors.

Human Resource Implications

There are no specific substantiality implications

Equality / Diversity

There are no specific equality / Diversity issues

Risk Management

The risk that borrowers may default is minimised by adherence to the Treasury 
Management Strategy, the credit rating of counter parties being checked prior to 
making the investments, all financial institutions with which the Council contracts are 
UK registered and have a Fitch F1 rating. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies

The report fits in within the Council’s Treasury Management framework.

Page 53



Lead Member View

Date of Consultation 24th July 2018 - Councillor Laws

Torridge District Council has fulfilled it’s obligations in accordance with Treasury Management 
Code of Practice. The Prudential Indicators show the impact on the Council’s financial position 
and provide re-assurance that risks are being managed and activity has been undertaken 
within agreed limits.  

4. CONCLUSIONS

Returns on the Council’s investments remain low, as the Bank of England has 
maintained its policy of low interest rates.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

To comply with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury 
Management in the public sector; Members are asked:

 To note the Treasury Management Report for 2017/18
 To note the actual Prudential Indicators for 2017/18

Page 54



APPENDIX 1

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2017/18

1. The Prudential code was introduced in response to the Local Government Act 2003; it 
requires Prudential Indicators in relation to Treasury Management and the Capital 
Programme to be reported to members at the end of each financial year. These indicators 
are set out in the in succeeding paragraphs in the format required by the Code, which at 
times is extremely technical.

2. Capital Expenditure 

The actual capital expenditure and sources of financing in 2016/17 were:

Capital Expenditure 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18
Actual Estimate Actual
£'000 £'000 £'000

Total Programme 1,367 8,466 2,172
 less
Grants & Contributions -565 -520 744
Revenue Contributions -483 -3626 1,098
Capital Receipts -319 -320 330
Net Financed from Internal/External 
borrowing 0 *4,000 0

*The New Depot has been delayed until future years, £4m of external borrowing has been 
approved for the Depot. New refuse recycling vehicles were purchased in 2018/19 (April 18).

3. Capital Financing Requirement 

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is the underlying need to use borrowing or leasing 
to provide capital assets. This is calculated from the balance sheet:

Capital Financing Requirement 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18
Actual Estimate Actual
£'000 £'000 £'000

Total 1,819 *5,159 1,172

* £4m of external borrowing relating to the new Depot has been delayed until 2018/19.

4. The Prudential Code includes the following as a key indicator of prudence:

“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital 
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year 
plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next 
two financial years”.

Page 55



Net Borrowing 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18
Actual Estimate Actual
£'000 £'000 £'000

Borrowing 2,507 5,155 1,155
Investments -13,000 -12,001 -12,001
Net Borrowing -10,493 -6,846 -10,846

The above table clearly shows that the Council’s net borrowing is significantly less that the 
Capital Financing Requirement as shown in 3, thus confirming that borrowing was for capital 
purposes only.

5. Authorised Limit for External Debt

This limit represents the maximum amount that Torridge may borrow at any given time 
during the year.  The Authorised limit for the Council in 2017/18 was £5,955k; Members are 
asked to note that Authorised Limit determined for 2017/18 was the statutory limit 
determined under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.  No additional borrowing 
was undertaken during 2017/18.

6. Operational Boundary

The operational boundary sets the limit for short term borrowing requirements for cash flow 
and has to be lower than the previous indicator (the authorised limit for external debt). A 
ceiling of £2,156k has been set.

The operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring. As 
noted in paragraph 5 there was no requirement to undertake additional borrowing during 
the year.

Operational Boundary for External Debt 2017/18 2017/18
Estimate Actual

£'000 £'000
Borrowing 6,156 2,156

* £4m of external borrowing relating to the new Depot has been delayed until 2018/19.

7. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

This indicator shows the proportion of the Council’s budget (i.e. the costs it has to meet 
from government grants and local taxation), that is required to meet the costs associated 
with capital financing (interest and principal, net of interest received). 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue  2016/17 2017/18 2017/18
Stream Actual Estimate Actual

£'000 £'000 £'000

Financing Costs 90,074 65,693 56,255
Net Revenue Stream 9,292,100 10,250,000 10,307,000
Ratio of Financing Costs 0.97% 0.64% 0.55%

Page 56



8. Band D Council Tax

The incremental impact of financing costs on the Council is detailed below:

                                                                                    2017/18                     2017/18
                                                                                    Estimate                      Actual                                                                             

sssssssssssssssssssssss

            Annual impact from previous year  for       £ 0.05                       -£0.35     
            Band D Equivalent

The impact of the reduction in net financing costs when spread across the 22,420 band D 
equivalent properties in the Borough equates to -£0.35 per property per annum.

9. Exposure to Fixed and Variable Rates of Interest

The Council must set limits to contain the activity of the treasury function within certain 
limits. All of the councils borrowing and investment in 2017/18 were at fixed interest rates.    
Consequently the Council did not have any exposure to the variable interest rates in line 
with its treasury management strategy.

10. Maturity Structure of Fixed Rates Borrowing

The Council sets upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of its borrowing. The 
table below details the boundaries for the maturity of outstanding borrowing compared to 
actual.  As an aid to comprehension the Council has set an upper boundary for borrowing 
becoming due for redemption with 12 months of 60%; at the close of the financial year 
2017/18 - £191k was due for redemption within 12 months, representing 17% of the total 
outstanding borrowing. All borrowing relates to loans from the PWLB.

2017/18

Lower Target Upper 
Target Actual

Under 12 months 0% 60% 17%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 10% 12%
24 and within 5 years 20% 40% 30%
5 years and within 10 years 30% 50% 41%
10 years and above 10% 30% 0%

Page 57



REPORT OF Strategic Manager (Resources)

To: Full Council

Subject: Membership of the Programme Board

Date: 06 August 2018

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The final structure and composition of the Programme Board was approved 
by Community & Resources on 16 October 2017, which were as per the 
recommendations in the report:

 That three of the Members of the Board consist of the Leader, Deputy 
Leader and the Chair of Community & Resources Committee.

 That if the Leader is also the Chair of Community & Resources 
Committee then the Chair of Audit & Governance is the third Member.

 That the fourth Member be appointed at the Annual General Meeting 
and that for the 2017-18 municipal year Councillor Hicks be appointed.

2. REPORT

2.1 The Programme Board met a number of times following it’s set up with 
minutes being circulated to Members and regular reports and updates being 
provided to Full Council.

2.2 However, in order to comply with the approved set up process a report should 
have been presented to Full Council for consideration of the appointment of 
the fourth Member for the 2018-19 year.  Therefore this report requests Full 
Council to nominate and approve the fourth Member to the Programme Board 
for 2018-19.

2.3 In addition to the requirement to nominate a fourth Member a second issue 
has emerged in relation to the Membership requiring resolution.  Whilst the 
composition of the Programme Board is clear about when the Leader is also 
the Chair of Community & Resources Committee i.e. the Chair of Audit & 
Governance Committee becomes a Member there is no provision on how to 

Purpose of Report

To appoint two Members to sit on the Programme Board

Page 58

Agenda Item 10



achieve the four Member requirement if the Deputy Leader is also the Chair of 
Community and Resources Committee.

2.4 In order to be consistent it would appear appropriate to also identify that the 
Chair of Audit and Governance would also automatically become a Member of 
the Programme Board if either the Leader or Deputy Leader were also the 
Chair of Community and Resources Committee.   

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Not applicable.

Financial Implications
Not applicable

Human Resources Implications
Not applicable

Sustainability/ Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/ Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
One of the purposes of establishing a Programme Board is to strengthen the 
management of risk.

Ward and Lead Member Comments

Date of Consultation – 11 July 2018
Leader Councillor Whittaker – It makes logical sense to maintain a consistent 
approach to how the appointments are made to the Programme Board as 
detailed in this report.
.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The report seeks to deal with a minor unintended consequence relating to 
how the appointments to the Programme Board were approved and 
associated Member appointments by Full Council at the AGM.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

 That if the Leader or Deputy Leader is also the Chair of Community & 
Resources Committee then the Chair of Audit & Governance is the third 
Member.

Page 59



 That nominations are sought for the fourth Member and approved by Full 
Council.

  
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation –  11 July 2018

Officers Consulted – Jenny Wallace, Jamie Hollis

                                                          

Contact Officer: 

                                  

Steve Hearse

Page 60



REPORT OF The Head of Paid Service
To: Full Council
Subject: Appointment of a Non-Elected Representative and Independent Persons
Date: 06 August 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To approve the appointment of a Non-Elected Representative to Audit and Governance Committee 
and two Independent Persons to work with the Monitoring Officer and Standards Committee 

1. INTRODUCTION

It is the responsibility of Full Council to appoint Non-Elected Representatives to the Council’s 
Committees and Independent Persons under the Localism Act 2011 to work with the 
Monitoring Officer and the Council’s Standards Committee. 

2. REPORT

We currently have one vacancy on the Audit and Governance Committee and two vacancies 
for Independent Persons.

The vacancy on Audit and Governance Committee was advertised and there was one 
applicant.  The interview with the candidate took place on 26 June 2018, which was 
conducted by a panel comprising Councillors Hackett and Whittaker with Jenny Wallace.

The panel concluded that the candidate interviewed demonstrated the necessary skills, 
experience, enthusiasm and commitment required to fulfil the role.  

The Panel therefore recommend to Full Council that:

Mr Roger Levick be appointed as Non-elected Representatives to Audit and Governance 
Committee for a period of four years.

Under the Localism Act 2011 the Council is obliged to appoint at least one statutory 
Independent Person to work with the Monitoring Officer, Members, and the Standards 
Committee. Appointments to this role are made by full Council, typically for a period of 4 
years. While the Council is only obliged to appoint one Independent Person, it is considered 
prudent to have two Independent Persons. This is so that any conflicts of interest can more 
easily be overcome, and also so there is always an additional Independent Person available 
for the subject member of a complaint to consult.

There are currently two vacancies for Independent Person, one of which was offered to Mr 
Martin Rawle following a successful recruitment exercise. An interview for the other more 
recent vacancy will be undertaken on Tuesday 31 July, and if successful, the name of the 
candidate will be confirmed at this meeting of full Council for appointment. 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Full Council must approve all non-elected appointments and the appointment of Independent 
Persons. 

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This complies with the Council’s Constitution.

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
N/a

4. CONCLUSIONS

That Mr Roger Levick be appointed as Non-elected Representatives to serve on the Audit 
and Governance Committee.  

That Mr Martin Rawle and one further applicant (subject to interview) be appointed to the 
role of Independent Person for a term of 4 years, pursuant to section 28 of the Localism Act 
2011;

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Full Council appoint:

a) Mr Roger Levick as a Non-elected Representative to Audit and Governance Committee 
for a period of four years.

b) Mr Martin Rawle to the role of Independent Person for a term of 4 years, pursuant to 
section 28 of the Localism Act 2011; 

c) The further successful applicant (subject to interview) to the role of Independent Person 
for a term of 4 years, pursuant to section 28 of the Localism Act 2011;

Page 62



REPORT OF Strategic Manager - Resources
To: Full Council
Subject: Transforming Torridge Programme – Progress Report
Date: 07 August 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To provide Members with a progress report on what is the most fundamental change programme 
Torridge has embarked on.

1. INTRODUCTION

The original Transforming Torridge Programme (TTP) was first approved at Full Council at 
its meeting on 9th October 2014.  A further Full Council meeting on 12th January 2015 
approved the budget of £1.6m and the project strands making up the Programme approved, 
which were:

(a) Office Accommodation
(b) Customer First – the reception hub
(c) Business Innovation – also known as channel shift
(d) Locality working

It was reported that the overall Programme of change would take around 2-3 years to 
implement on an incremental basis rather than a “big bang approach”.

There has been a great deal of progress against the principle targets within the Programme 
and the first major phase of the office accommodation project has been completed  with staff 
now fully occupying the new building “Riverside”.  

This report updates Members on all aspects of the Programme and further projects 
associated and now incorporated within Torridge’s overall Transformational Programme.

2. REPORT

2.1 Programme Board 

The last written report to Full Council was on the 27 March 2018 and a verbal update 
provided on the 28 June 2018.  The Programme Board last met on the 12 July 2018.

Overall progress is on track and within budget.  Whilst risks and issues have been raised 
most of these are being actively managed within the projects.  

2.2 Progress reported 

 Waste & recycling service change
The new service was implemented on time as planned and since that date the key message 
to note are:

 Residual tonnage for domestic waste had fallen – residual tonnage for domestic was 
had fallen from 1300 tonnes in 2017 to 880 tonnes.

Page 63

Agenda Item 12



 Kerbside recycling had risen from 415 tonnes to 669 tonnes
 Approximately 200 tonnes of food waste had been collected, representing 20 lorry 

loads which under the old regime would have gone to landfill. 
 11,189 people had subscribed to garden waste collections, against a target of 10,000 

(this has since increased to 11,378 as at 25 July).

There were a few issues;

 Crews were working additional hours which was due to:
 tonnage being far heavier than anticipated
 the need to sort for contamination

However, in terms of the overall implementation of such a significant project and change 
affecting every household in the District it has been hugely successful. 

    
 Digital by default – customer management system (Firmstep)

A chart was distributed showing calls received in the call centre at Bridge Buildings.  
200 calls a week were registered in 2017 whereas for the comparative period in 
2018 there had been 2400.  

The number of calls was starting to fall and the type of call had changed, with the 
focus now being on there matters such as missed collections.  Call centre 
operatives now numbered 4 but when times were quieter one employee helped 
Admin out.  A further employee had assisted Waste & Recycling with the delivery of 
recycling boxes.  Looking forward, 2 of the team were due to leave on 27 July, with 
one following a week later.  

Overall the Firmstep software had successfully delivered a chargeable garden 
waste solution.

The focus for the system will now to be look at the next areas of service to develop.

 Accommodation – Riverside,  Customer Hub, Riverbank House and Bridge Buildings

It was reported that the accommodation project had dropped slightly behind schedule due to 
issues with the roof.  A separate amount of money had been set aside for the roof but 
additional costs had been incurred for the removal and storage of the solar panels, which 
was necessary to mitigate the risk of theft and or damage.  There had been no change to the 
tariff during the absence of the solar panels.  It was hoped overall completion would be by 
the end of October.

More detailed negotiations had commenced with the preferred supplier. The tendered bid 
value had not changed.  The proposed scheme included 5 residential units and a 
commercial unit on the ground floor.  

 Regeneration projects

Northam Burrows Visitor Centre – External funding is being sought via Coastal 
Communities Fund (CCF).  The Leader has also sought support from our MP for the 
scheme.

Page 64



Wilkey’s field car park – Planning permission in place and TDC ready to move to next 
stage,  once discussion with DCC engineering design team have been progressed and 
finalised as had been planned.

Hatchmoor – this is still progressing and the Property and Procurement Manager was in the 
process of completing a number of documents received from the vendor’s solicitors.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

None from this report.

Financial Implications

None from this report as is just updating progress.

Human Resources Implications

None from this progress report

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
n/a

Equality/Diversity
n/a

Risk Management
n/a

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
n/a .

Ward Member and Lead Member Views

N/a – as this is simply and update and notes from the Programme Board

4. CONCLUSIONS

Progress continues to be made in all projects since the last progress report to Full Council in 
March 2018.  

The establishment of the Programme Board is delivering improved involvement of Members 
at project management level and enhancing the “one team” approach for successful 
implementation of the overall Transforming Torridge Programme.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Full Council:

(a) Note the progress made highlighted in the report.

Page 65



Document is Restricted

Page 66

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 70

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Council Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Constitution update 2018
	Appendix A - Outline of amendments
	Appendix B - Amendments

	9 Annual Report on Treasury Management 2017-18
	Appendix 1 - Treasury Management Outturn 2017-18.v1

	10 Membership of the Programme Board
	11 Appointment of a Non-Elected Representative and Independent Persons
	12 Transforming Torridge Programme - Progress Report
	17 Strategic Business and Financial Planning Workshop - Outcomes
	Actions & Outcomes

	18 Delegation of Statutory Officer roles

